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SACRAMENTO, CALIPORNIA
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 11, 2001, 1:15 PB.M.
---0o00---

THE CLERK: Calling civil case 98u026_P1ans‘vérsus
Sacramenbo City Unified School District. TIt's on for
Daubert hearing, vyour Honor.

MER. BRENDALL: Scott Kendall for the plaintiffs, your
Honor .

MR. FINE: Good afternocn, your Honor., Martin Fine
for the defendants.

MS. CANNOMN: Michelle Cannon also rvepresenting the
defendants.

THE COURT: Counsel, T would like to take up some
matters before we get to the Daubert hearing and the
motlons in limine.

This matter, as you know, I think ig set for trial on
Lhe 250h of June. I want to revisit a couple of matters,
but most importantly, the final pretrial order, which I
Lhvink needs some amending. I don't know if you brought
vour copy of 1t with vou this afternoon.

M. RKendall, do you have it?

MR . KENDALL: Yes. T do.

THE COURT: Why don't you come up to the podium, and
I <can point out some problems?

I reviewed the digputed factual issues with some care

MARGARET A. McNAMARA, CSR No. 6729 - (918) 446-1347
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now, and T take responsibility for not reviewing this and
analyzing thig better the firét time around. But with
respect to the disputed facts turn to pagese three of the
order.

There are a number of disputed facts that are in fact
ilegal issues, and they are not factual issues. I believe
all the factual issues that plaintiff has placed in
contention are really legal issues, and T would like to
incorporate those, counsel, in the points of law provision.

T have & draft here -- I'm going to go through this
flrst, and I'm going to give you my draft of proposed
amended disputed facts and amended points of law. I would
take each of the five issues that are set forth under the
disputed facts and incorporate those as essentially -- not
all of them, but some of them essentially as legal issues
that should be taken up on the points Qf law.

But I do have the one issue that I think -- of the
disputed facts set forth by the plaintiff which I believe
1s at least somewhat incorporated in that, which is the
noticn of whether Anthroposcphy isn't religion.

Would counsel concur that is certainly a fundamental
factual issue in thig case?

MR. KENDALL: VYes, absolutely. They are saving it is
not a religion, and if it's not a religion for purposes of

the First Amendment then our case doesn't have any way to
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THE COURT: Wouldn't the Court have to make a finding
with respect to -- and posit this, whether it's a religion
or not?

MR. FINE: Tf we could back up for cne second. We
would see characterized as a mixed issue of law and fact,
and therefore it's an issue of law. Becausge you're
applying -- it could be a pure fact. But for example, is
there Anthroposophical rituals, but that needs to apply to
he Alvarado standards, which are lssues cf law.

THE COURT: I would agree, but don't you think there
are some factual determinations here?

Maybe we can bifurcate that notion, but I -- frankly,
L thought I would have had a real expert here to discuss
that isgsue. 2And [rankly neither side hag presented an
expert that is going to discuss, in my view with the kind
of authority that I anticipated, whether Anthroposophy is a
religion. There is no academic scholar that is going to
comne into this courtroom and say Anthropoégphy ig a
religion.

But T do feel from the percipient witnesses and
possibly from other expert witnesseg -- although I'm not
entitled certainly to this, but I think there will be
testimony and evidence that will indicate whether or not

Anthropogophy 1s a religion. And I utilized a combination
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1 of & definition from the Cxford dicticnary and the
;2 Webster's New World, and this is by no means definitive.
;3 But as an example, as a sub-issue of whelther
;4 Anthroposophy is a religion T incorporated the following
55 two guestions: Whether Anthroposophy is a system of belief
56 and worship of a superhuman controlling power involving-a
"7 code of ethics and philosophy requiring obedience thereto.
LS That's not necessarily a definitive definition of religion,
59 but it would help me if I could conclude that's what we
;O have here.
ii 'm not suggesting this is necessarily so. Do you
12 understand what I'm saying?
L3 I think these are incremental steps that I need to
?4 take in order to understand whether we have a violation of
LS the establishment clause. Tt would help me at least, T
LG chink, 18 I could encapsulate the notion of Anthroposophy
L7 in some form. L think the defendants have attempted to do
;8 so in their first three issues under religicn, but it is
‘9 number three which ¥ think ig most helpful; and that is
10 whether Anthroposophy can be recognized through a variety
11 of signs.
12 S0 what T'm suggesting iz we have a fundamental,
13 albelt wixed issue in fact and law, but 1 think there are
;4 some factual issues that would be -- that if they were
ES resolved would help me reach the ultimate conclusion on
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fil

P
13
14

15

17
ﬁa

19

1

whether or not this 1s a religion by the Establishment
Clause.

loes rhat make sense?

MR. FINE: We took these factors straight from
Alvarado, and 1f we go beyond the Ninth Circuit statute --

THE COURT: That's vyour belief?

Him hin: Yeg, your Honor. Because we Cook that
astraight from Alvarado.

THE COURT : T can include that. I mean, I tried to
find a guestion that would help wme. TF you want to include
those referenceg Lo Alvarado I'l11 do that as part of the
subset of guestions.

MR. FINE: 1 was more reporting rather than arguing.
We took each one of those from Alvarado, and we were
abttempting to apply the standards from the Ninth Circuit.

THE COURT: I don't know whether these are going to
be controlling igsues as such, but T would like to have a
frame of reference so I can at least get my arms around the
notion of religion. And if I have some questions that
would relate to that issue it would clearly benefit my own
thinking. That's all I'm guggesting here.

So wilthout prejudging the matter I would like to have
that, whether Anthroposophy is a religlon. Do you
understand what I'm doing?

MR. FINE: Yes, your Honor. May I make one point in

MARGARET A. McNAMARA, CSR No. 6725 - (916) 446-1347
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tarms of grappling with this igsue?

vYou are doing what we have done, and we will be
making an avgument that by definition it's a form of
philosophy. So you may want, for your own benefit, to have
one definition of philosophy that you can algo get your
hands around.

THE COURT: I'm going to revise the -- my final
pretrial order. You are going to have an opportunity to
amend iU, [ did include aun igsue with respect o the
noticn of the philosophy that may encompass the definition
of Anthroposophy as well.

MR. FINE: That might help, your Honor.

THE COURT: A1l right. Now, with respect to the
cstablishment clause endorsement test and the entanglement
losues letb me just ask one preliminary guestion.

Are we dealing with any schools other than John Morse
and Yubé River?

T notice you reference -- you make reterence Lo
plaintiff Oskvidye Elemencary -- no. You make reference to
Twin Ridges including Yuba. Is there anything between that
besides the Yuba River?

Wiy do we have Twin rRidges along with Yuba River?

MR . FINE: Twin Ridges is an elementary gchool
digstricr. The only school that plaintiffs have attacked so

to speak is Yuba River, but I wouid be misleading the Court
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if ¢ didn't say there ave approximately three Co four othex
Waldorf method charter schools that the defendant has
granted charter status to. But il's never come up in this
litigation.

THE COURT: Well, Mr. Kendall, we're talking -- I
mean if we're dealing with Yuba River -~

MR . KENDALL: The evidgnce at the time we filed Cthe
lawsuil -- the only knowledge we had of any Waldorf schools
initially was the Alternative Charter School, and then it
suitched to Yuba River subseguent to filing this law suit.
Ancd I believe subsequent to the close of discovery there
have been a sceries of attempts of the same school digtricts
to open other Charter Schoois.

We don't have any evidence with regard to those
because discovery has closed. So that's bagically the
answer Lo your guestcion.

rHE COURT: What we'vre dealing with is Yuba River and
John Morse. That's another day, another lawsuit. How 1
rule in rhis case may affect those schools, hut the bottom
1ine is | would like to focus my attention on the two
schools in Juestion.

That 's what all the evidence has been pointing to.
Certainly expert testimony is pointing to that, and I
assume the precipient witnesses went to that gchool.

MR . KENDALL: There may be one that will apply to the

MARGARET A. McNAMARA, CSR No. 6729 - (916} 446-1347
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credipilicy svandard, and rhat would be more fhan Yuba

TR COURT: That would probably be admissible as long
s it applles [O rhe school here. an I'm going LO
reference ohLy Jobn Morse and yuba River. I understand
Friete may DE ouhEl sohools, but for purposes of thisg trial
we T GQoLng b deal with those LWO schools.

1n rhat regard you will see I have modified these
guestions Lo agree just For the most part grammatically,
e witl respect LO the -- the principle cquazstion, as 1 see
i, on the issue of endorsement 1 have & question. This
would be the question that would apply fFirst to John Morse
rhen To Yuba River charter school, whether the Waldort
o rboudam enpioyed DYy che John Morse Waldorf Methods
Maguet School, John Morse, advances and promotes
o hroposcphy

Apc under that:

ny What are the curricular and extra—curricular

Lot iviries at John Morse .
3y Whether John Morse curricular and extra-curricular
qecivivies conbform with teaching guidelines.
o Whar ave the sccountability systems jn_effect for
John Morse.

1y What are the operational and pevsonnel gystems 1n

cffecs for John Morse .

MARGARET A. McNAMARA, CSR No. 6729 - (916] 446-13477



L Again, I just want to get my -- again, you are going
2 to have an opportunity to correct this, but is there
F%B something here that you immediately object to with respect
to my characterization of that particular issue as it
E'S applies to John Morse?
6 MR, FINE: Yes, your Honor. It's not a Waldorf
7 curriculum. Tt's a Waldorf method or Waldorf inspirved.
8 THE COURT: Waldorf methed. How would you describe
9 the use of the Waldorf method in that school?
510 MR, FINE: As an instructional methodology.to
Hi introduce the State approved curriculum.
112 THE COURT: What about the Waldorf inspired
i13 methodology?
élq MZ . CANNON: I think the Waldorf inspired curriculum.
%15 MR. FINE: Or methodology.
h6 THE COURT: You Lell me.
hV Methodology -- Waldorf-inspired methodology emploved
ﬁB by the John Morse Waldorf Methods Magnet School.
19 s that correct?
20 MR . FINE: Yes, vyour Honor.
21 THE COURT: Advances and promotes Anthroposophy.
27 And then there is a subset of guestions that help me
23 understand whether that ig in fact the case, which are
24 related factual i1lssues.
25 What about Yuba River Charter, is that also a

MARGARET A. McHNAMARA, CSR HNo. 6729 - (916) 446-1347
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Wwaldorf-inapired methodoloyy?

MR . FINE: That ‘s correct, your Honor.

THE COURT: Thern the same subset of guestions would
pe following that particular factual igsue.

A1l right then. With respect Co entanglemeﬁt - -
issues of engtanglement 1 have the following guestions
which are -- I thought there was some redundancy iﬁ these
questiong, and maybe there wasn'l. But I‘'m going to give
you Lhree guestions that 1 hoiled down asg to each of the
two schools. 2&nd they would be the following guestiong:

Whether any religious organizaticon 1s penefitted by
Lhe use of the Waldorf method -- should we say Waldort
inspired methodology?

ME. FINE: That would be acceptable.

THis COURT: For my sake I want to make sure we are
dealing with apples and apples here SO I'11 smay by the use
of the Waldork inspired methodology. The first guestion
fhen is whether any religious crganization ig benefitted by
che use of Waldorf inspired wmethodology at John Morse.

The next question is whether the SCUSD, due to the
operation of John Morse, pays from public funds any benefit
or provides aid to any religious organization, and 1if so,
what is the nature of the benefit or aid.

ME  ETNE: TI'm thinking out loud, your Honor.:

We Ltook this from bthe San Francisco Unified case, and

MARGARET A. McNAMARA, CSR No. 67239 - {916) 446-1347
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it gounds like you Formulabed 1€ much better.

THE COURT. T've rewritcen it, but for my PUrpoBses
this made more sense. vou'll have an opportunity TO review
this Lo see 1if this makes sense OO not.

and the final gquestion would be whether ény religious
ocrganizalion is benefitted by the wWaldorf inspired

methodology at -~ excuse me. L migspoke. The third

question {s whether, dus LO the operation of John Morse,
fhere is a current velationghip between geuUsh and any
religious crganization.

And 1 tbok that to be gomething different than the
igsue of payment of public funds . Although I think the
higher question 1s MOLE crucial to the issue.

any problem with that guestion?

MR. FINE: No, your Honot .

THE COURT: All right. Yeou'll have an opportunity to
review these. T just wantb to get -- before I go to the
rrouble of advancing my order I want LO make sure there is
nothing that jumps out at you.

MR, FTHNE: May I make one comment?

THE COURT: You may.

MR . FINE: On page 5, question nunber 5.

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. FINE: That's omitted. We believe that's an

important part of the test for engtanglement. There 18 a

L —
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line of case law saying that chat would not be
entangtemaent.

TYE COURT: ALl right. Let's turn to the points of
law. This is a little different. What I would like is all
parties to brief ihe following, and this gets back now, in
some wmeasure, to the plaintifi's factual issues which I
rhink are legal issues, although it's not verbatim.

But the following would be -- 1 think in general what
[ would like to see 1in briefing then I will address the
plaintiff’s points that the plaintiff -- excuse me the
defendant -- what the defendant wighes to address.
Generally, the following should be briefed:

Whether Anthroposophy 1s & religion for Establishment
Clause purposes under current United States Suprene Court
and MNinth Circulit sltandards. Number two, whether John
Morse School advances Anthroposophy through the ingpired

Waldorf methodology in violation of the Establishment

Clause. Three, whether Yuba River advances Anthroposophy
rhrough an inspired Waldorf methodclogy -- I guess

Waldort-inspired methodology.

Number four, whether John Morse school advances
Anthroposophy through tlhe Waldorf inspired methodology in
viotlation of Article 16, and the same with Yuba River
school. So we're dealing with the establishment clause and

the California Canstitution with respect LO both issues.

MARGARET A. McoNAMARA, CSR No. 6729 - (916) 446-1347
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A1l right. Now, the only thing I changed with
respect to the defendant's legal points is on the lssue of
whether the plaintiff properly pled entanglement. That's a
dispositive motion issue and should not be a part of the
points and authorities. 8o that's going to be deleted, any
reference as to whether or not they would be allowed to
argue excessive engtanglement.

We have crossed that bridge, other than everything
would be verbatim as you've already got it here. One ot
Lhie guestions T Found here, and it hasn't been briefed in
rhe briefing on these Lssues as 1 rhought it might be, that
ia the reference Lo page 13 with respect LO impartial
experts.

The plainciff relferenced a bugene Schwartz, but no
mention has been made of Mr. Schwartz in these briefs.

MR . KENDALL: They made a motion in limine were
regards to M. Schwartz.

THE COURT: I don't see him. So you have Co amend
the pretrial order as far that witness in any event.

MR . KENDARL: He was always listed as a witness.

THE COURT: As your witness?

ME . KENDALL: Yes. He ig listed as a witness, but I
can see that he is not acceptable as an expert witness the
way that he came in.

THE COURT: 211 right. So he is listed as a

MARCGARET A. McNAMARA, CSR No. 6729 - {916) 446-1347
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perciplient witness from vour standpoint?

MR . KENDATL: Right. If he does testify he wilil
tegtify as a percipient witness.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS . CANNON: He has been listed in all the
plaintiff's pretrial conference statements as an expert
witness, but now they are willing to call him as a
precipient witness.

THE COURT: All right. That will be deleteded from
the order.

A1l right. Why don't we then commence with the -- do
you have any guestions with respect to anything the Court
has discussed so fav?

ME . KENDALL: Just procedurally are we going to have
an opportunity to review this material?

THE COURT: Yes. T'm going to issue an amended final
pretrial ovrder, and vou'll have 15 days to object to any of
the amendmenté. and you've heard hasically what they are
going to be, and it you wish to amend the order you may do
so on any portion of it aside From what I've done.
Oobviously vou are not going Lo add new witnesges Or new
comments.

i'm talking about the issues as they are presented
factually. We're going te cover the motions in limine

today. So we've really dealing with right now agreed-upon
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iasues, disputed ilssues and legal issues.

MR . KENDALL: The point that I1I'd iike to make is the
characterizacion, at least of the defendants, of these
disputed issues really tries to narrowly focus.the casé as
being a pure curriculum case. And it's our contenticn, and
1t'g always been our position, that with a violation of rhe
astablishment clause a case can be brought specifically on
a narrow curriculum case.

Byt in this instance 1t's a little bit bread, for
example, paying an anthropogophical college to pay public
school teachers has been an issue involved in the discovery
process, and we would contend that that also constitutes an
endorsement . We would continue using the name Waldorf. A
public school adopt ing the name waldorf endorses religion
in the same way as 1f we had a Catholic Charter School.

THE COURT: Let me suggest those are clearly legal

i{gsues Lhat vou've discussed so far. My suggestion to you,
counsel, would ke to offer those amended points of law. If

there are fFactual issues that get into that you should
inelude those also in your amsndment because that's going
to control what I'm going to be considering here.

MR . KENDALL: I understand.

YTIE COURT: So if you are looking at the training and
education of teachers and such, 1L you think that's an

igsue I think we need to -- in fact, what I think we need
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to do iz probably have a status conference. I have a
briefing schedule on that issue, and what I'm going to
suggest ig we'll hold a status conference in conjuﬁction
with the hearing Cthat I'm going to get into now so that
when we take up those particular items if there is any
dispute about whether or not those particular Factual
issues are going to be controlling in this case in addition
o what 1've suygested.
Okay. Do vou understand what I'm suggesting now?

ME . KENDALL: Do I take it that what we're talking
aboutr is this June trial date 1s not a go?

THE COURT: No. It's going to go. We'll be trailing
it, bubt right now it's on calendar. That's why I want to
get these mnatters resolved. Sc 1f you have other factual
issues or elther side has factual issues that you need to
incorporate in wy order I want to see those within 15 days
of the date bthe ovder is going to be issued, and then we'll
have a hearing and a status conference at the same time we
liave Lhe hearing.

WNow, the hearing that -- T want to hear further
authority on the iassgue of standing in light of the Alteman
case and any subseguent authority, Ninth Circuit authority
or other Circuit authority, with respect to that case and
the issue of standing. And what I'm interested in now --

I'1l order a briefing gchedule, and the hearing date will
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e June lst and a gtatus conierence.

what I would like is briefing on the issues raised in
Alteman ftrom plaintiff as well as a proffer on the
expenditure of public funds for the specific purpose that
is laid out in Alteman.

And actually there ig Ninth Circuit cases that maké
that requirement. Alteman is very clear on that, and T
would like to hear from plaintiff, not only briefing on
Altewan and any related cases on standing that were not
previously discussed, but in addition I would like an offer
of proof on the issues relating to Lhe expense of public --
expenditure of public monies for the activities that are
objecrted vo in Lhis complalnt.

And just by reading my own order -- summary judgment
order T think that the notion that Plans is challenging the
entire curriculum of the school is probably notb as much
specificity as I need. So I'm looking in your opening
brief for an offer of proof that this is a kind of
expenditure that we've referring to that would run afoul of
the establishment clause. And that brief would be due on
or before April 27.

Any opposition thereto would be‘filed on or before
May 11. Reply briet will be due May 18. Hearing and
status conference will be on June lst.

M3 . CANNON: Do you want a status conference

MARCGARET A. McNAMARA, CSR No. 6729 - (916) 446-1347




cftatement ag well?

THE COURT: We're golng to make sure wWe have our

dueks in line before the final pretrial order. T will

review any other additlions that you made, but T'm not going

te ask for a joint statement. I just want To review any

proffer.

i?;f amendments in addition to what the Court has already
f;:? proferred. :
i;é Al right? E;
I L
'ﬁ£9 M3 . KENDALL: So the initial brief will be by the ;
.;iO plaintiff and the reply by the defendants? “é
.ﬁil THE COURT: Yes. T gee thig as your burden, and I ;
f{@z chink you should file the opening brief. And it's in €
:ﬁ regponze Lo the Alteman case. o 1 think it would be more g
;H appropriaste for you Lo file Ulie opening brief with the é
16 MR. KENDALL: Okay.
?éﬂf THE COURT: All wight. Let's move on to the -- %
;w Any gquastions regarding anything the Court has =said? |

M, P LNE: Mo, vyour Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Let's move to the Daubert

hearing.
Fiprgr of all, are any witnesses going to testify?
MR . KENDALL: No, your Honor.
MS . CANNON: Wone for the defendants.

MR. FINE: o, vyour Honor. We're prepared to gubmit

MARCARET A. McNAMARA, CSR No. 5729 - (916) 446-1347
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on tlhie papers and Lhe deposition Leatimony.

THE COURT: A1l right. Is the wowan in the back a
witness?

ME. FINE: She's a law clerk with our office, yéur
Honor .

THE COURT: All right. With respect Lo -- are you
willing to submit this on the briefs, Mr. Kendall?

MR . KBENDALL: 1'd like to make a few comments, your
Honor .

THE COURT: 1'11 give you all an opportunity to make
comments, but there is no live testimony. SO we're going
to argue this; is that correct?

all right. Why don't you come forward then at this
Cime, Mi. Kendall, and let's take up the first witness,
Dan Dugan.

ME . KEMDALL: That ‘s correct, your HoRor.

THE COURT: On Dan Dugan the Court has reviewed the
motion and points and authorities of the defendants and has
also reviewed Mr. Dugan's deposition.

Do you want to respond to that? Because that wasn't
much of a response. [ was expecting more from you, but
maybe you can do this orally. Because I think you need to
make some argument here or you should have some -- you
better have some, put that 1t way.

MRE. KENDALL: Your Honor, as a general proposition
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witlh regard to the - we're jJust taking about the Daubert
issues vight now?

THE COURT: Motiong in limine will be later.

ME . KENDALIL: Your Honor, atbt least we're apparently
going to be modifying the pretrial order a little bit in
terms of what the isgssues are, but one of the issues is
whether or not Anthroposophy is a religion, and in order
for bhe Court to determine what Anthroposcphy 1s it has to
have sowme knowlcdge'about that .

THE COURT : T don't think that's a correct satatement.
T don't want some knowledge. i want expertise, some expert
testimony. There is a big difference between some
knowledge and expert testimony.

MR KENDALL: I understand, your Honor. The issue
though initially was in the abstract we talked about having
4 trial exclusively on the issue of whether or not
anthroposophy is a religion. The grandard for this Court
o delermine that in terms of Daubert initially is a
gate-keeplng function which the Court has already ruled on
initially in the summary judgment motion.

The Courlt found that Mr. Dugan was an expert, and the
same objections were made at that time as have been made
now .  This isn't the type -- this isn‘t a guestion about
scientific evidence or things of that nature. 850 the

standard -- the Daubert standard although appropriately is
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is a gate-keeping function.

Tt's a significantly different standard than if
somebody was trying toe offer scientific testimony under
Fvidence Code 702, and the issue is, number one, does the
witness have some sort of specialized knowledge of more
than -- you know, what an average person would have.

Humber two, 1s it relevarit, and number three, is it helpful
to the fact finder.

The defendants have taken the position, and 1 thinl
it's & correct position, that as to the ultimate legal
cquestion as to whether or not anthroposophy is a religion
ig an issue fFor Lhe Court to determine and is not really
the subject of direct expert testimony. So the guestion 1is
when we have an abstract question of what 1is anthroposophy

and whether or not it is a religion, Lhe guestion ig how do

o

we get that evidence before Lhe Court.

Mr. Dugan -- and to back up a little bit, thig whole
question about anthroposophy as an emerglng new age
religion ig somebhing significantly different than what we
.- it's not an organized religicon like a Christian church
or a Catholic church or the Jewish religion. There ig
something different that the plaintiff contends that has
kind of been coming into the back door of the educational
process.

I don't know that there isg anyboedy in the country
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fhat has studied rnthroposophy sther than the
rnthroposophicals rhemselves that would have some sort of

collegs credential that would say, "I'm an expert in

Anthroposophy . " M. Dugan, who is an inventor, has been
studying anthroposophy for about, as he indicated in his
dectlaration for the summary judgment motion as well asg in
his deposition restimony, he has been studying this -- it's
been an area of interest for him tor well over Len years.

He has a glgantic library that the defendants took
two days going rhrough during the discovery process. He 18
an officer in pPlans, and other than Anthroposophicals
themselves. 1 would suggest, as he nag already indicated,
he probably KNOWS more about whal anthroposophy is, at
least in the abstract, than any person.

PHE COURT: That's where are vou falling short in my
mind, counsel . 1 mean, you could have -- suppose you had
an automobilile mechanic that can rake down a car, build it
pack up, knows where every sclrew and bolt and mechanism

goes, bult doesn't know a thing about miles pevr gallon or

emission standaxrds. T interested in emission grandards

21 snd miles per gallon.

!

L 8 The fact that Mr. Dugan may pbe very conversant with
23 fhe subjeclk mattel ia not the criterion, and 1 take issue
74 with what you've just said; that there is nobody out tnere
25 in the academic world that does have any knowledge of
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Anthroposophy . T would think there are a number of
sociologists and anthropoligists in those fields that would
deal with every type of that, particularly as it deals with
public education or education in generval.

I very disappointed that you didn't bring in
someone Lhat can help me with thig, and I don't think
Mr . Dugan is any mnore qualified than T would be if I read
up on it for a couple of years. It's the concept of
anthroposoplly that we're dealing with. Tt's not
necessarily the content soO much as what is 1t in the world
of religion or‘philosophy. Tow do we categorize it.

[t seemg to me that yoﬁ need to have somebody with a
perspective far greater than a person who loves Co read
aboult Anthroposophy because he likes it or doesn't like 1t.
T'm nor looking for fans or devotees oOr people that have an
ax to grind either, and L'm not suggesting -- Mr. Dugan I'm
sure has pretty strong feelings about it, but I'm looking
for somebody that can tell me about it and put this idea of
anthroposophy in a context.

and I don't think Mr. Dugan brings anything to the
stage. e is like a mechanic that can't talk about wmiles
per gallon.

Do yvou understand what ['m saying?

ME . KENDALI,: Yes. I do, your Honor. 1 think the

purpose, as 1 ment ioned -- T can see that you don't think
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that any of these witnesses can ultimately tell you whether
or not Anthroposophy is a religion for the purposes Qf the
Estalblishment Clause.

THE COURT: -I think that would be true.

.MR. KEsDATT: So what I propose Mr. Dugan for, or 1
can do it through other percipient witnesses which is'mofe
difficult, is to give you the foundational information in
orider for to you make that decision. 1 believe I can do it
justify simply through percipient witness, and I think that
putrs & more difficult burden on us. And it places, in
Lerms of Liwme, a more difficult burden on me to present
Chal case.

THE COURT: Bub isn't that better evidence for me?

1 wean, it just strikes me that what you just said
says il in a nuatshell. I know it's going Lo take some time
to do this, but I'm not looking for the Reader’s Digest
VET S 1O i'm nol gitcing in the doctorts office tryling to
get my hands on Anthroposophy, and I think percipient
witnesses might be Far more valuable to the Court than
someone who takes upon himself the subject matter.

MR, KENDALL: T agree with you, and I agree that
these witnesges can't ulbimately make these decigions on
Lhis mactter. IC's not a matter of you evaluating two
experts, one saying it's a religion and the other saying

it‘s a philosophy. I don't think it's that simple, and I

MARGARET A. McNAMARA, CSR No. 6729 - (916) 446-1347




25
don‘t think it's going to be baged on witness credibility.
what it's going to be based on is witnesses TO

present this Court wilh what the Anthroposocophicals séy
{ henselves, and maybe what religious figures say about
anthroposophy, like Dr. Morton for example. And then you
have to put that information together using thelr own
malerial, L[or example, their references to Lucifer and
other materials that we will identify if, for example, the
vuba cunrriculum that T highlighted for you during the
summary Judgment motilon, which on its face is religious.
and T Chink I can present wmy case almost exclusively
in Lhalb way. 1'm nob interested in having Dan Dugan come
up and testilby that Anthroposcphy is a religion. 1 don't
intend for him to do that, buat I think what Mr. Dugan can
do for this Court is provide you with the foundational
information that the anthroposophicals say themelves what
anthroposophy is if that assists the Court and that is
relevant.

S50 again, I'wm not -- [ agree. Mr . Dugan 18 not going
to testify that it's a religion.

THE COURT: wWhatever he testifies to he is being
called as an expert, as [ understand it, Lo explain to the
Court the nature of Anthroposcphy, and by education and his
academic discipline it isn't there for me. I don't know if

I have confidence in that type of testimony just because 1
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don't think he has the credentials as an expert witness O
present those Linds of opinions. That's my bottom line.

T'm not suggesting that there cannot be an expert
witbtness. 1f you do so, 48 I said, 1 would be very
surprised it there wasn't several folks in the academic
field that could not cpine in souwe detail aboutb the subject
of Anthroposophy . T suspect I could e wrong, but I think
anthropologlists Or historians can probably deal with this
much more expertly.

But I just don't believe Mr. Dugan has the
gqualifications to opine on the nature of Anthroposophy as
an expert witness 1f fhat's what he 1s being of fered to do.

MR KENDALL: The nature of anthroposophy, to provide
rhe (Court that foundation, like T said, 1 can get Che
informabion in chrough other wiltnesses =o I'm not overly
concerned about this particular witness for this partisular
purpose. 1 fhink it's more convenient for the Court if it
atlows bhe evidence Lo come in that way.

THE COURT: Let me say preliminarily also so you
understand, 1it's not just -- witnesses don't come in
because they have read a lobt about the gubjecl, and this is
one way to get the information. It doesn't work that way.
We're dealing with a very difficult subject in some
regpaclhs 1n Lerms of its definitional aspects as well as

its educational aspects as well as its religious aspects.
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and I do think that you need to have people with some
scademic credentials, at least for my purpose, to talk
about the nature of this particular subject matter. 5o 1
don't want to mislead you. T want to be clear. Being well
read on the subject, T don't think that makés it.l

anyway, anything further as Lo Mx. Dugan? The
implication is the only way -- there is nobody out there
fhat can understand the subject except people that buy
hooks about ib. I don't think thatts true.

1t's nob a very convincing argument. You are saying
thig is just somebody that's familiar with it, that that's
going to be your best bet because no one else knows
anything about it. That's not a very compelling argument.

M. KENDALL: Frankly, the only academic expert that
' aware of other than anthroposophicals themselves is a
witness that is going to testify or has at least heen
identified to testify for the defendant, and he even has
some cursory relationship. His brother is involved with
Anthroposophy.

o [ believe with emerging new age religions that you
can be self-taught, and the cases indicate that it's not
regquired to have an academic credential.

THE COURT: T'm not saying it can't be self-taught.

I just don't believe that Mr. Dugan -- I'1ll give you an

example. Mr. Dugan said he studied philosgophy, and he had
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read Beriram Russel and some Greek philosopher, Sccrates.
Of course we don't have any writings con Socrates. Well,
I've read lrving Stone. Irving Stone is a popular
biographer, and he also wrote a popular biography of
Michael Angelo. Most of it was fictional, but reading
Trving Stonets biographies is hardly a keystone to his
credentials.

So I have grave doubts about any reliance upon his

opinions about anything that has to do with any
intellectual endeavor including anthroposophy. So I'1l
tell you that reading that one portion of his deposition
made it pretty clear Lo me that he 1is not the person who 1is
So I'm goling to grant the motion

going Lo help the Court.

'3

45 to Mr. Dugan and exclude his testimony as an expert
take up the next proferred expert. Is that

IVMR. KENDALL: Yes, your Honor.
ZTME COURT:  Let me just say at the outselb that some
hé Same problems Mr. Dugan has Mr. Morehead has. 1

tsee how a person who does haven't any academic

edéﬁtials, no college degree, again is very interested in
éubject malblter, but how is he any different -- tell me

';.HQW is he any different in terms of Mr. Dugan in

nﬁrof bringing anything to the table as an expert
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witness 1in Anthroposophy utilizing my same comments.
ME . KENDALL: Well, he is a licensged minister.
THE COURT: What does thalt mean?
Tt doesn't require any education. As I understand
it, it's just a license like a driver's license; isn't it.
MR, KENDALL: I don't know precisely what that meané

for him.

THE COURT: His testimony says it doesn't require an
aducational qualifications. I'm nob opposed to admitlting

somebody licensed to pursue their religious beliefs, but

how does Lhat help me?

29
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MR . KENDALL: I see where you are going, and if you
are going to make the same points with regard -- I mean, he
wriles articles. He speaks on these dgsues. I think it's

important for the Court to underscand the traditional --

THE COURT: ['m not sure Mr. Morehead is in a
pogsition to pub this in context. He does haven't the
education to do that. He is a very sincere individual

presumably and such, but he doesn‘t the qualifications that

T'm looking for in an experlt to help me understand what

Anthroposophy is.

Again, T think -- what I said abcut Mr. Dugan I think

applies eqgually to Mr. Morehead unless you can point out
how he may differ from Mr. Morehead other than the fact

that he is a licensed minister.
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MR . KENDALL: My contention would be with regard to -
both of these gentlemen, as IT've already stated -- and I
don't want to waste the Court's time, is that emerging new
age religions are kind of something relatively new on the

scene in termg of their impact and their involvement with

30

public educatiocon. Anthroposophy in particular is an entity

that's been woving aggressively in the public sector, and
ag far as 1 know this is the first case that has raised
fhis issue. And I haven't been able to find a lot of
different experts out there about itc.

T think it's helpful for the Court to know that
somebody that studies cults and studies new age religions[

how he compares Anthroposophy to other known religions.

THE COURT: Counsel, T agree with that, somebody that

inderstands and studied cults and does a lot of things,

academic pursuits, which would help me understand thisg, I'm

not disagreeing with you. T want a rigorous, intellectual
approach on this with scademic training and background. I
don't see Mr. Morehead having any of that.

Tt's not that I don't want help here. Don't get me
WIOng . rft's sust that Mr. Morehead basically doesn't help
me .

MR . KENDALL: It goes to the weight of Lhe evidence
as opposed to 1Ls initial admissibility.

THE COURT: All right. I'm going to grant the
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deFendant ‘s motion with regpect to John Morehead. He 1is
not gualified as an expert witness. Based upon the factors
thalt are set forth in the motion and also reviewing'his
deposition he does nobt appear to have the academic.
background oI expertise that would help the Court
understand the provisions of 702 of the Federal Evi@ence
Code .

All right. Let's move to Reverend Mortoﬁ. Now,
counsel, leb me just say rhis with respect to rReverend
Morton. Clearly I think he is qualified to opine on
traditional religicus -- Christian religious organizations
and possibly others, depending upon -- T don't have all
ihe -- T'm not entirely certain that enocugh of that has
been developed in his deposition regtimony .

and I'm inclined to allow him to opine on that
gubiject matter of the religiocus organizations, how they
appear, what Lhey do, things of that nature, and that might
be helpful to the Court. Now, when we get into the issue
of Anthroposophy, however, he has again just a smattering
of information aboul 1it. T don't know what he is going to

Lestify

- what vou want toO wim testify to about
antliroposophy .

1f he knew more about it maybe he could compare
traditional Christian religions with anthroposophy, but I

just don't see any information that I reviewed in his
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Cestimony in depogivion that would indicate that he has
that kind of knowledge. He has red pamphlets, and he has
talked to some people.

MR, KENDALL: T think that he can provide the Court
with helpful information. He has a Ph.d. in divinity in
terms of what that means.

THE COURT: Yes. T'm 1n agreement with that.

MR. KENDALL: And [ think that will be helpful for
the Court, and I think that depending on the other
foundational evidence that's before the Court he can place
that in context for you. And the other issue that I think
is dmportant, and T think Lhe Brown case speaks toe this,
the MNinth Cilrcuil case, is that when we are discussing thisg
core issue ol religious neutrality one of the important
igsues involved with that is the divisiveness in termg of a
public debate 1if in fact Lhe Government is endorsing one
relligion over anaother,

And to Cthat extent T think that the perspective of

rtraditiona] religions about Anthroposophy and other
emerging new age religions is alsc helpful for the Court in
determining, for exawmple, the Christiane view of
Anthroposcphy as being religious. I think that's at least,
if not dispositive, that's relevant to the Court, and

Dr. Morton was direckly invelved in this controversey in

his community.
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He wasg a leader ip his community and participated in
rhe debate about 1T, and I think it would be helpful for
the Court to hear that testimony. |

THE COURT: I'm not entirely sure that's going to be
proper, but 1 want to hear a respolse from the defendant as
to this particular igsue. And 1 indicated my intended
ruling here on rRaverend Morton.

counsel, who is going to be addressing the Court?

MR . KENDALL: Your Ionor, T might be able to help the
Court out. Debra anell is going to be a precepient |
witness, ana given your ruling on Dan Dugan T think that
it'e the same result. 1111 concede Lhat, and Kathleen .
sutphen, primarily ‘e information she is going to provide
to the Court is going LO be preciplent in nature.

and there is another doctor. lHer name escapes e fox
Fhe moment, but 10's in their motion. and T decided 1I'm
not goling Lo éall her.

THE COURT: She 1is a precipient witness?

MR . KENDALL: Correct.

THE COURT: What about Dr. Scotl.

MR . KEWDALL: Dr. Scott is not going to testify.

THE COURT: All right. 5o we're dealing with
Reverend Morton then?

MR . KENDALL: 'That's correct.

THE COUR'T: A1l right. Thank vyou, counsel .
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MR . FINE: Your Honor, as vwe cgaid in our paperwork,
we would agree that Dr. Morton would be gualified to
testify to the Protestant religion, the Baptist faith, but
rhat really doesn't have anything to do with this case. He
is particularvly ungualified in the area of anything to do
with public education. [He has no training or knowledge or
experience 11l public or private education.
There is also [frankly no £ic to the facts in this
case, and hisg copinion restimony -- he knows nothing about
John Morse School and almost nothing Yuba RiveT gchool .
Bias is Uhere because he was, as counsel indicated,
actively involved in Eorming a group to oppose Yuba River
Charter School. So I agree with your Honor's take on it,
that he's gualified to spealk about the traditional
prorestant religion, but I don't see how that would be
helpful to this case.

THE COURT: But would it be helpful to the Court at
least Lo hear one expert in religion, at least in the
perspective of a protesrant, and I can take that
definivion, albeit limited to the extent that it does
define maybe a ProLestant Christian religion or
denomination of that Christcian religion, and then as the
precipient witnesses testify I can use that as scomething --
at least I have a bench mark of some type.

T'm not going to suggest I give it the weight it
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deserves, but I think 1t might be helpful to have somebody
reatify in that regard.

MR, FINE: Your Honor, we gaid in our paperwofk that

we did think he was qualified. With his academic

packground he is was qualifled to trestify as to the
protestant affairs.  We don't believe he is qualified_td
regtify as to Anthroposophy itself and ask that it be
limited and that he nob testify to public school
curriculuam.

He takes the next step. He says here, "My background
i1 Anthroposophy 1s &8s a religion." And because of public
achool, the Waldorf ingpired curriculum, he has already
made those leaps in his mind, but we can ectablish that on
cross examination.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Kendall, I'm inclined to
1imit Reverend Morton's testimony as bto the -- his
expertise as LO religion, hjé definition as encompassed by
the Christian doctrines, Protestant doctrines as well as
individual Southern Baptist doctrineé.

Am T correct?

MR. KENDALL: Yes.

THE COURT: I mean; T think he has got enough
cducation and expertise LO reatify as to his understanding
of religion and its definitional terms within that context.

T do not bhelieve that he has sufficient expertise, how=ver,
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Fo testify with respect LO public school curricular as 1t

may e evidenced or influenced in these LWO schools.

There ig not simply encugil, in my view, of an
indication that he has that kind of expertise. So I'm
going Lo 1imit lhis testimony as I've just ocutlined.

Now, leb's take up the motions in limine if we could’

The first two -- [ mean, these hag are normally not subject
Lo the motions in limine. Clearly the parties are going to
be excluded as witnesses. The witnesses will be excluded
except party representalives. I will allow one party
representative as to each.

Mot ion in lLimine nuuber one is going to be granted.

[ take it you didn't have any real opposition LO that; did

®

you, counsel?
MR . KENDALL: That's correct, your Honor.

THE COURT: And then number two, I'm presuming that

you are golng to have -- you ment ioned that you have board

menbers. The Court as 4 rule only allows one

representative of the defendant. That person could be a
witness, the president of your organization Or whoever you

wish to designate, but 1'm not going to s21low the Board Lo

pe pregent unless they are not going to be witnesses.

So each side will be allowed a representative to be

present who may be a witness, but all other witnesses will

he exciuded.

L
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MR . KENDALL: Your Honor, I don't have any problem

with that.
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THE COURT: 811 right. So Twin Ridges and Sacramento

Ccity would have a representative who could be witnesses.
The Plans may have representatives who could be wilitnesges
present.

MS. CANNON: When do you want the parties to
degignate their representative?

THE COURT: You can do that at the tiwme of trial.

411 right. WMotion in limine number three?

ME . CANNON: Are you skipping number two?

THE COURT: Two I thought was the representativés.-

MS . CANNON : Numbetr one was.

THE COURT: Excuse me. You are right. Number two 1s

unlisted expert witnesses. 1 apologize. 1 would grant
that motion.

Ts Lhere any —~-we have already dealt with
Mr. Schwartz; haven't we?

MR . KEWNDALL: That's correct.

THE COURT: I'1ll grant motion number two. You have
no objection to that?

ME. KENDALL: Well, with the exception that we might
call him as a precipient witness.

THE COURT: Why don't yvou all three come forward to

the podium?
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ME . KENDALL: As we discussed, we might want to
consider him as a percipient witnegs. I think he might
have some valuable information to give the Court in a
precipient matter not to opine any opinions.

MS. CANNON: vour Honor, there 1s & later in limine
motion which asks LO exclude personal witnesses with
knowledge.

THE COURT: That's somebody Schwartz chat you are
referring Lo7

MG . CANNON:  Right.

THE COURT: You know, unless there is actually
witnesges outside Mr. gohwartz ['m going LO grant that
motiorn. The opposition, as T recall, wasn't --

MR . KENDALIL: We have no opposition tO him being
excluded as an expert witness.

THE COURT: Well, the Court igs going to grant that
mob 1o,

Mumber three, requested exhibits not produced. Are
these the -- they were not copied ovr something? What are
we dealing with here with respect to the exhibits that were
not produced?

MR . KENDALIL: Well, vour Honor, thig is the most
froubling motion in limine to me. We have had -- we have
had extensive discovery prior to getting to this point over

a period of years including, for example, producing

1
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evidence 1or inspectbion and/or copying. way back at the

ing we produced documents, and we've been producing

heginn

documents during deposition.

and at the pretrial conferance wWe agreed that

Cdocument: s rhat had been previously exchanged in discovery

we don't have [O provide during this evidence exchange

pursuant To the Court's order. Now, there are three types

of evidence that the defendants are complaining about. The

first involved documant s which we do not have under our

control .
defendants

Thege are copyrighted maLerials that the

identified in Lheir responsge TO interrogatories aguch as

bocks and materials that they have on their bookshelves at

tihe subklect schools in the Sacramento City Unified School

nistcrict, and Lasically what they were trying Lo do is

require us LO produce documents that rhey have control of

The purpose of the evidence

and that are copyrighted.

axchange 18 80 fhere is not going Lo be any surprise as to

what the evidence is.

They already have this evidence. They!ve always had

1t under thelr control, and it's oOur intention to subpoena

that and have them bring that evidence that they have under

control Lo trial. We don't have control of those

materials.

THE COURT: Do you have those materials or copies of
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them?

MR, KENDALL: No.

THE COURT: Has counsel identified the materialg that
he wants subpoesaned?

He's ligted those as exhibits, has he not?

MS . CANNON: Well, your Honor, exhibits -- I mean,
documents are listed as exhibita, but there has been no
subpoenas or anytbhing else like that if that's your
question. A lot of these documents that are lisgted or
exhiibitcs that are listed, I suppose, are books that havé
not been produced. I have no way of knowing which is
which.

211 T have is plaintiff's proposed exhibit list.

ME . KENDALL: Well, perhaps even more importantly as
soon as this issue was raised by the defgndants, and it was
actually well before the ultimate reguired exchange, we
actually exchanged before we were required to under your
order, the final order pretrial order. And I immediately
provided counsel this information when these concerns were
raised.

Ttve only talked about one of the categories. There
is three categories of documents that I didn't produce. I
immediately offered to produce them, and the defendants
don't really want theﬁ because they have already inspected

them. They just similarly want to use this as a sword in
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order to keep evidence away from the Court, and 1it's really
not appropriate.

The cecond category of documents are student work.
That is not the type of thing that can be copied. They are
big colorful documenteg that were produced during the -- for
inspection to the defendants during the initial document
exchange, and then they were Lrought a second time during
tlie depoaition of the experts and made available for the
defendants to make copies if they chose to do that. 2And
they made copies of ail sorts of different things.
so they were produced twice, and then we tendered to
produce them 2 third time. They complained that it wasn't
included in the document eﬁchange. Tt'a not something that
copies can pe made of. These are big giant exhibits.

THE COURT: You have exhibits that can't be copied,
work of students, charts, maps ob diagrams of some Lype?

MR, KENDATL: Right .

THRE COURT: And I think you have copies of things
that are in the possession of that defendant that you've
identified?

MR . KENDALL: Right. They have that on their
shelves.

THE COURT: What ig the third category?

MR . KENDALL: The third category ig video tapes.

Now, these video Lapes Wwere produced on Lwo occasions. The
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first time is when the defendants went Lo Mr. Dugan's home
where they went GLhrough his library and documents for a
period of like LwWO days. The second time they were
produced was during Mr. Dugan's deposition, and there is a

whole big discussion about that in the deposition.

and we complied. We provided them specifically -- we
gave them a list of all of the different videotapes, and we
identified some of thewm that were created by the defendants
and the video tapes that are copyrighted materials that are
created by anthroposophicals.

THE COURT: Wow, are these in the possession of the

ME . KENDALL: T don't know if they are in the
~maoegsion of the dafencants or nol.

THE COURT: Where are rthevy?

ME . KRENDALL: We have them.

THE COURT: Have you seen them, counsel?

MS. CANNON:. No. We have not.

MR . KENDALL: We have made those available two times
ro the defendants Lo Copy.

THE COURT: WNormally you would have to copy those and :;
curn them over. That's the way the system works. 4

MR, KENMDALL: They accepred our offer of those

coples. 1 can point Lo you where the whole discussion took

place, and I don't think we have the obligation to purchase
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these. We gaid, "You can have any tapes that you want,"
and they said, "Ckay. We want this tape and this tape and
this tape."

Tn fact, we provided copies of those tapes that were
created by these defendants.

THE COURT: You crealted the video tapes?

MR . EKENDALL: Two of the video Lapes were created by
the defendants. The rest of the video tLapes are
copyrighted materials that are produced by
anthroposophicals themselves. Again, as I mentioned, I
immediately tendered these Lo he copied by the defendants.

THE COURT: Which of the exhibits are videotapes?

MS . CANNON: I believe the --

THE COURT: Ta ik 30 or 31 or 40 or 447

MS CANNON: T believe they are in a later seriesg, 98
chrough AL and 2.

THE COURT: Thoge are all videos, and which of these
videos did the defendant produce?

ME . KENDALL: Has the defendant produced?

THE COURT: These are all copyrighted videos?

MS . CAINNON: rour Honor, the defendant has not made
nor seen any of these videotapes.

THE COURT: 1T thought he said he made some of those.

MS. CANNON: That's incorrect.

THE COURT: Counsel, I don't understand why you can't
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make a copy of these. I understand they are copyrighted.
Think vou can certainly get permission under these
circumstances to copy them.

MR . KENDALL: I immediately responded with a 1e£ter
that T can provide to the Court tendering to do whatever we
needed to do to fix this problem with regard to all of
these exhibits if they wanted to gsee. the school children's
work again and do whatever they wanted. I offered all of
Fhiis dwmmediately.

THE COURT: Well, we have time before trial, and I
don't want to waste my time on this. I want you to make
the videotapes available, physically available to the
defendants.

MR . RENDALTL: ot a problem.

MS . CANNON: Physically available, send us copies, or
Just come and view them in his office?

THE COURT: You can send the originals and let them
make copies, or yvou make the copies and send it to them.

If vou are goling to do that you have to give them accesgs LO
do that.

MR . KENDALL: Not a problem, your Honor.

THE COURT: Now, with respect to the astudent work,
wiio has possession of the students' work?

MS . CANNON: Mot the defendants, your Honor. I don't

vrnow what student work he 1s talking about.
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MR . KENDALL: ‘They are all at defendant's school.

THE COURT: Wait a minute. How are they identified
in the exhibit l1ist? |

MR. KENDALL: As student work.

THE COURT: .What number? The exhibits identified are
30 and 317

MS . CANNON: Forty-three is listed as student work
from Oakridge BElementary, and 44 1is listed as student worlk
From Twin Ridges Blementary. And 45 is listed as Oakridge
Sehool student work reflecting Anthroposophy.

THE COURT: How is student work from those schools
relevant? Are those the schools we're dealing with here?

MR . KEWDALL: Yes.

M5, CANMON: Ho.

THE COURT: We're dealing with John Morse or River
Charter School?

MR . KENDALL: Or theilr immediate predecessor.

THE COURT: “There is no date on this. 1'm going Lo
look very carefully. TI'm not going to allow some student
who did work three years before the fact. I don't know 1f
that's going to be relevant to me.

ME. KENDALL: It would certainly be relevant Lo
excessive entcanglement lssues.

THE COURT: We're entangling two agcheools here that

aren't even involved in this case?
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MR, KENDAELL: Your Honor, this is rhe activities of
the defendants Twin Ridges and Sacramento City Unified
School Disrricr after there was gsubstantial complaints
about their activities. After we filed the lawsuit they
changed the locaticon of the school. They kept Lthe same
teachers. Everything is still the same.

THE COURT: T'm not goling te get into any
admissibility issues at this point. T want you to make
those exhibits physically available to the defendants, and
I want a date on that as well. In fact, it wouild be
helpful, counsel, on all of this that deals directly with
the schools, to put dates on these exhibits.

L want to know, when we are lLalking about. I see
soms have dates, and gsome don't have dates.

A11 vight. What is the second item -- the third
item? Those are documents in the possegsion of the
defendant?

Counsel, have those been identified sufficiently for

yvou? What's the issue here?

46

MS ., CANNON: Your Honor, they are titles of books and

pamphlers of various sorts, which at the beginning of
discovery when an interrogatory was sent about any

materials thalt had been purchased by either school, a list

of doguments including books and such were mentioned there.

Tt does not mean thatb any schocl, nor certainly ocur law
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office, have copies of any of those things. Those are
things that were atb one time purchased by the school
districu.

THE COURf: Ccan't you tell counsel that you‘don't
have them?

M3 . CANNON: We have narrowed it down to 16 document
that we don't have. They didn't exchange them with us so
that's why we're asking them to be excluded.

THE COURT: What's your basis for the motion?

MS. CANHON: The plaintiff has listed these as their
exhibits, and they were not produced in the exhibit |
exchange. And we said there are exhibits that they have
Lhat we wanl pursuant to the exhibit exchange.

THE COURT: So he obviously didn't exchange them
bhecause he didn't have them; is that correct?

MR, KENDALL: Yeah. These were documents --

YHE COURT: You didn't subpoena them for a
depositbion?

MR, KEWNDALI: No.

THE COURT: Why not? What about a production notice

MR . KENDALL: They were not produced, but they were
identified.

THE COURT:  That's not good encugh. You have to
produce them. I can‘t look at a list and say --

MS . CANNON: Your Honor, defendants have never been

477
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?
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served with a regquest for production of documents in this
lawsuit.

THE COURT: Counsel, you've gobt to get a production
notice out or a subpoena.

ME. KENDALL: I'm going to subpoena them. If they
don't have them, they don't have l;hem.

THE COURT: But you are confined to the final
pretrial order. That's the point of this whole exercise.
You just can't subpoena documents.

MR . KENDALL: Your Honor, they can't identify
documents .

THE COURT: Let me finish my statement so you
understand. Loock at the final pretrial order, and that
will tell you what you can produce and admit into evidence
or attempt to admit to offer into evidence in this case.
and it's confined ro those exhibits that have been
exchanged.

MR . KENDALL: Your Honor, they have these exhibits in
their response Lo our interrogatories. They can't identify
things as being relevant and then say Lhat they don't have
them | any nore.

THE COURT: I'm talking about the order. Just
remember we're dealing with the final pretcrial order.
That's what are vyou stuck with. That's the way the system

in the Federal procedure works as far as the local rules
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go.

Now, if you didn't get a production reqguest out
that's your problem. You could have gotten these doéuments
then. 'They had them, and they were bound to produce.them.

That's your obligation, but you can't just say, "We
idenrcified them, and now we want them." It doesn't work
that way. Tf vou can find me some way to get around this
T'd be happy to let you, but I rhink are vyou stuck with

rhig order.

MR . KENDALL: But they are listed in the order.

THE COURT: That's not the issue. You don't have
Fhem. They were never produced, and they were never
exchanged.,

Tt's not just the fact that you listed them, and
therefore they are admissible or therefore subject to the
order. You can list whatever you want in there. That's
what tlhis purpose is for is to gort out these kind of
issues .

MR . KENDALL: Right. And the purpose 1s to avoid the
surprise. How can the defendants identify these as being
relevant documents and have them disappear and get away
with that?

THE COURT: You don't even know what these documents
are?

MR . KENDATLIL: We reviewed them. We looked at the
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anthroposophical book store.  We locked at tChem. We have
an idea what's in them.

THE COURT: Why didn't you send a production notice
out?  Why didn't you discover the documenlts?

Tf yvou looked at them and saw that they were
important you could have done that.

ME . KENDALL: We looked at them. Wa found @pt ey
were important, and we intended to subpoena them for trial.
We listed them as because the defendants are the ones that
identified them as being relevant documents.

Mo . CANNON: T wouldn't say we identified them as
being relevant. We identified them as being purchased by
the schools at gome pbint in time.

MR . KENDALL: We can purchase the documents LOMOITOW
and exchange them i1fF that's what the Court wants us to do,
but T bhink it's very important for the Court to bhe able to
know --

THE COURT: Counsel, there is ways of doing -- the
digcovery process 18 not difficult, and it's not that
Formalistic. And once you've identified them and felt that
they were important for your case, then you'wve got an

chligation Lo serve a request for production on opposing

counsel . That's your obligation.
vou didn't do that. You have a list. You've gseen
them. vou want them to be admitted into trial. It seams
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to me it's going to bhe on you Lo obhtain those documents on
your own.

MR . KENDALL: I don't have any problem with doing
that if tﬁat's what the Court wants me to do.

THE COURT: Well, I'm going to reguire you to do
that, and I understand whal counsel's objection is. Bu; T
think that's probably elevating form over substance. 850
vou obtain the documents provided Lhey are exactly Lhe same
documerts that were identified in the production -- was
that duving deposition that they were produced?

MR . KENDALL: No. It was interrcgatories.

THE COURT: Then the physical documents you never
saw?

MR . KENDALL: Right. We didn't see Uhe ones that
ware under their control. .They were very specific in
identifying which ones they were.

THEE COURT: A1l right. Then you are going CO have
rhe burden of obtaining those documents, and then I want
you to make sure that the defendants have an.opportunity to
see those documents before trial and at least verify that
these are Lhe documents that they identified in theix
interrogatories.

ME . KENDALL: Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Motion number four, that

motion is denied subject to the provision the Court Jjust
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proposed.
MS . CANWOK: T there a deadline for plaintiffs to
comply with That?

SHE COURT: Yes, within 15 days of the date of this

hearing.

Mumber four wotion in limine regarding evidence of

anthroposophy not relevant Lo the determination of religion

or the teachings or aclivities of either school. This is

in reference to exhibit 17, 25, 26, 73 through 76, 78 and

79. 1'11 hear from defendants on this.
Why isn't that -- why isn't the issue of
Anthroposophy, albeit as I understand it not specifically

related to whab's going on in the school, nevertheless of

some conseguence or relevance in this case?

There is a lot of things that we have talked about so

far rthat don'l necessarily directly implicate the

methodology of the schools but neverthelegs might be
relevant in understanding what that methodology ig?

MS . CANNON: Right. But there is also a lot of
things aboul Anthroposcophy that plaintiffs have focused on
which wouldn't even gualify as that. For instance, zsome of
fhe exhibits and documents and testimony have focused on
rituals of Anthroposophny, and I think the Court would be
hard pressed to find how that satisfies either the Court's

information about what occurs at elther school or about
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Anthroposophy as a religion.

THE COURT: It seems to me Lhat you raise this during

trial, or you raise CLhis -- MOYE specifically, you just
simply say that -- you talk about Anthroposophy generally,
and you gave me Some examples. But it may well not be

admissible, bub I'm not sure I can jasue a blanket order on
thie motion. 1 don't think it's gufficiently Spegific to
allow me do do s0.

T mean, I don't kunow specifically what we are dealing
with here. Do I -- have you glven me any kind of
indication of -- what, this is some dozen documents that we
are talking about?

+ don't know -- I don't know what we'tre talking
about . You may be perfectly correct in what you are saying.

Mo . CANMON: I understand whal you are gaying. We
1isted the documents from the plaintifi's exhibit list
which the Court does not have in front of you at this time.
50 if you want Lo raselve ruling for the time of trial and
then make your ruling at that time that's fine.

THE COURT: I'm goling Lo reserve this for the time of
trial.

Mot ion number five, evidence regarding Rudclph
Steiner.

MS . CANNONW: Thig is the same sort of thing if you

want bto reserve this for Lrial.
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THE COURT: Itita reserved.

Humber six?

MR . KENDATLL: That's probably the same situation for
B51x. |

Mg CANNON: No. I would definitely not agree that
it's the same =ituation for number six. We attached
deposition testimony Lo help the Court see that many of the
listed witnesses do not have any personal knowledge of
either of those schools in this lawsuit. We certainly
dealt with Mr. ngan and Mr. Morton as it applies Lo this
igsue, and Dr. Scott is not testifying. But we have only
deallt with them as experts, nob as witnesses lacking

personal knowledge.

THE COURT: Well, the problem, I suppose, is I have
no idea -- I know, for example, Mr. Dugan testified to --
T don't know what he is going to be testifying to here. Tt

may be exactly on the same lines he was asked about in his
depesition in which event your motion is probably well
raken, and ordinarily T wouldn't grant a motion like this
before trial.

Tt may not -- the evidence may be totally lacking
here, or the relevance may be totalling lacking. RBut there
has been some contaclt by these folks with the school;
hasn't there?

MS . CANNON: No. - That's our contention.
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MR . KENDALL: Mr.

Dugan took some pictures.
MS . CANNON: Mr. Dugan has not been to either of the
schools involved in this lawsuil.
THE COURT: Well, I'1l reserve ruling here. Tv11
need a prefer as Lo the witnesses bugan, Morehead,
Morton, Snell and Sutphen before they testify.

211 rvight?

MR . KENDALL: Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT: Now, with respect to the other witnesses,
what personal knowledge do

the other witnesses have with
regspect to the Lwo

schools, Roemer, McKay and so forth?
[ don'l have any way of ruling on this.

Do these
folks --

Mk . RKENDALL:

They have children that went to those
schools.

THE COURT: Do they have personal knowledge of what
wentb on at

thoge schools?

MR . KENDALL: Yes. They do, your Honor.

MG . CANNON: T don't believe they do based upon the

witnesses that Lhey disclsced and

rhat we were able TCO
depose . They weren't

disclozed so they weren't depoged.
was hoping for an offer of proof from the plaintiff so that
thig can be disposed of.

THE COURT: Thege are wilnesses on the witness list.

1 would require an offer of proot

.

to all these witnesses
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with respect to their personal knowledge.

ME, RKENDALL: Certainly.

THE COURT: All right. So I'll reserve ruling as to
motion number sSix.

Nunber seven, Mr. Kendall, ig if vyour intention of
asking, 1 presume, Leachers about their personal beliefs?

MR . KLZNDALL: Yeg, your Honor.

THE COURT: Tf£ this was a school that had say Roman

Catholic

- all the teachers weré Roman Catholic, or they
were all Mormans or Catholic or whatever, do you think.you
could aslk that gquestion?

MR . KENDALL: If the -- I think there ig very narrow
circumstances where I would be alble to ask such questions.
one of those would be -- and I rhink perhaps whether it's
appropriate to ask rhe guestion or not would be contingent

ot what the Court derermined on the first issue of whether

or not Anthroposophy is religion.

THE COURT: No. The premise here 1s they are
promoting it. You have to make that showing first before
vou ever gel Lo thig issue. Whether Anthroposophy 18 a

religion or not would probably be pretty determinative.
et 's assume it is a religion.
Then you've got to show that the specific witness oOr

teacher that's a witness in Lhis case 18 OF promoting

anthroposophy, and once you reach that threshold then you
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can seek a motion to inguire under 610. But are vou not
going to get there just because Anthroposophy is a
religion.

Do you understand what T'm gaying?

ME. KENDALL: I do understand what are you saying,
LUl 610 seems Lo be about credibility and that you can't
use a person's pergonal religious beliefs to attack their
credibilicy. ©One of the issues in this case is whether or
not anthroposophy is being advanced by the defendants in
their personal convictions as teachers in terms of

advancing Anthroposophy. I think it 1s a relevant issue.

L

CHE COURT: Well, T think you are talking about their
credibility to a degree. The case law is very strict.
You've got a tough hill to climb o get into this. I'm
going Lo forewarn you.

I'm not going to grant this motion. T will reserve
my ruling, but I want you to know that vou'wve got a steep
hill to climb on this one.

ME . KENDALL: T appreciate that, your Honor.

THE COURT: ALl right. With respect to number eight,
S past acts and practices of either school district ghould
not be admitted.

.Mr. Fine?
MR. FINE: Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you want to address the Court on this
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igsue?

MR. FINE: I have wandered to the podium, your Honor.
Bight, nine and ten are critibal to the parameters of the
trial and the length of the trial. Since it's for
prospective injunctive velief and not for damages the Ninth
Cireuit case law is clear that we can't go back into timé
and punish the schools for something that wasg done .

You've rtouched on it once or twice, but there were
predecessors. Oakwood, which is not a Waldoxt Alternative
Charter School is long gone, and what's dispositive in our
selief is that they were long gone before the filing of the
complaint.

We are now dealing wiltlh John Morse school and Yuba
niver Charler School, and those came into being before the
complaint was filed. There was never a request for a
temporary restraining order. There was never a request for
a preliminary injunction.

Educators continuously on a weekly, annual and
monthly basis upgrade thelr programs. John Morse is
subject to what's called a program quality review, and it's
constantly being changed, updated and made bhetter. We're
going to introduce that into the record,

vuba River has an accountability matrix that's going
to be adopted by the State as the model, and it's

continually being updated. 5o whal we have from most all
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of their witnesses are people who go way back in time
before the complaint was file who don't deal with Yuba
River or John Morse scheool, and they are seeking an

injunction to prospectively shut 1t down.

So we think that's critical. Let me give you an
example. Lel's take a hypothetical schoocl, Mark Twain
Schoocl. Let's say that in 1994 and 1995 at Mark Twain

school they said the Lord's prayer prior to the start of
Lhe school davy.

Let's say they stopped it. Leb's gay there is no

58

more Mark Twain school. They dissolved it, and a complaint

is filed in 1998. And they say because in 1994 you said
the Lord's prayer we're entitled to an injunction, and
that's not the case law,

We are perfectly willing to go back to the time of
the filing of the complaint as long as we deal with John
Morse School and Yuba River School, but we just believe
it's not the law in the Ninth Circuit that you can go back
in time under the Tn Re: Young doctrine to get a
prospective injunction.

THE COURT: How do you get arvound the Section 1983
action?

It's got to be a present controversy. How does this
come to be relevant?

MR . KENDALL: First of all, the defendants in this
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case are the school disricte. Tt's not the particular
gchool . It 's the defendants. it's the school districts,
and it's their conduct.

They can't simply avoid confronting this issue by
siwmply changing the name of the school or changing the
location.

THE COURT: T don't think that's what counsel 1is
saying. We're talking about different practices and
different methodologies.

MR . KENDALL: Tt would be our contention --

THE COURT: T can only enjoin what's going to happen,
what's Lhreatened to happen or what's going on right now.
So let's stay on that path.' Okay”?

So what happened in 1985 and '96 and '97, unless it's
going on today, ig not relevant to my consideration. You
are asking for injunctive relief in a Section 1983. What
wernl on back then right now is history unless you can tell
me what's going on right now.

ME . KENDALL: Well, your Honor, I have no way to ao
that since thig case has been -- thrpugh the defendants'’
actions been delaved for over a year because we had an
interim appeal, and discovery has been closed for about two
vears. So I don't know how it would be possible for us to
put on that type of evidence.

THE COURT: It may not be, but I've gobt my rules in
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this case, my rules circumscribed by what I have to do and
what T can do and whalt 1 can't do. And what I can't do is
rule on actions that took place three years ago. I-can‘t
impose any injunctive relief under those circumstances.

MR . KENDALL: It is our contention, and I mentioned
carlier when we were rbalking about what the issues were in
fhe case in terms of the disputed facts, that there is --
it's going Lo be possible Lo salvage these because of the
excegsive engtanglement issue. 5O their conduct in the
past witli these particular teachers and what they did,
which are sbill teaching in these achoola districts, is
relevant .  And the Court should hear that evidence.

g a bench trial. Tf we don't ultimately persuade
vou to allow these schools Lo continue without it being
excegsive entanglement then T imagine we have a problem.

THE COURT: 211 right. You're geing to have these
reachers testify?

MK . KENDALL: Yeg, your Honcr.

THE COURT: Aren't vyou going to be able to question
them ag to what Lhey are doing?

MR . KENDALL: T want to be able to discuss what they
have done in the past.

THE COURT: What difference doeg it make in terms of
what. they did in the past in terms of the relief you are

geeking?
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you've gotb Lo examine fhem on what they are doing
now, and did it run afoul of the BEstablishment Clause. I
want to enjoin them, but 1f it doesnt't I'm not. Now,
whether they did it in the past, that horse isg out of the
barn and three counties away.

T can't do that. Think abcut that. So, I mean, you
are going to have the witnesses here. Are you going to be
able Lo ask what they are doing and what kinds of conduct
they are engaged in and whatever exhibits you need LO
establish what they are doing now'

T mean, all of that 13 going to be relevant, but what
happened in the past -- I mean, I've gobL a <ase in
controversy that has to be digposed of based upon the
circumstances now, not what's going to be rhreatened to
happen in the future. That's my rule. This is not an
Listorical critigue. This is an action seeking injunctive
relief.

MR . KENDALL: But part of the issue goes Lo the
excesasive entanglement, and the conduct ig relevant to that
question because it may not be possible. Whalt they atfempt
o do is try to separate Waldorf methods from
rnthroposophy, and the question is can they do that. And
if the answer 18 no, and Lhe reason you kiow that it's not
is because of their past conduct.

ind it would reguire excessive entanglement for the
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Court to monitor them to make sure they are not engaging in

that same past conduct, which is important and very

41

relevant in Lthis case.

THE COURT: T¥ what they did in the past,is.going on
roday vou are right. If it's not going on today there is
nothing T can do about it. I can't deal with those things
that tcok place btwo or bhree years ado. Tt just simply
isn't bhefore the Court.

Tf it's going on now and there is excessive
entanglement you can lmpeach witnesses Lhat may say -- you
know, may say this is not golng on. and then you can
establish by circumstantial evidence this is ewxactly what's
going oI,

You are the trial lawyer. You can do all those
things, but you can't introduce evidence of past conduct
until yon've made it relevant to present conduct. Okay?

MR. EKENDALL: Yas, vour Honoi.

THE COURT: It has to be relevant Lo present conduct.
It wmay well be relevanct. T don't kKnow what's going to
happen in this case.

MR . KENDALL: That's the whole issue. Until we take
the witness at trial T shoﬁld be allowed to Lry Lo
establish the foundation if possible.

THE COURT: You can do that, but I'm not going to

allow any past conduct £o be introduced &as evidence in this
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‘g in Fact evidence of present conduct.

case unless it

Do you understand?
ME .  KENDALL: Yes.

THE COURT: To that extent I'11 grant the motion. To

the extent that such conduct ig relevant to present cenduct

1'11 allow you to make Lhat foundation, and we'll take it
up at the -- during the course of the witnesgses' testimony.
MR . KEWDALT.: I still have a veal difficulty in
understanding precisely what the Court means by, tnresgent
condact". Does that mean in the last month, in the last

gix months?

Where i1s the line?

THE COURT: The line is what's going on now. Thig is
an injunctive action. If you cen lay a foundation that the
paslt conduct has directly affecred what's going on in that
school today, and by, "today", I mean the day we are in
Crial . T'w sure there is going to be some activity within
days or months before this trial toolk place that might very
well explain what's going on btoday circumstantially in that
school, but 1t has to affect what's going on in that school
today. This is an injunctive proceeding.

MR. KENDALL: I understand that.

THE COURT: &nd 1I'm not going to enjoin anything that
took place in Lhe past. That doesn’t mean what took place

in the past is not relevant today. That may very well be
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T'm not going Lo prejudge that, but I'm not going to
éilow you to produce evidence of past conduct that isn't
}elevant to the conduct that is going on today in the
schools. ALl right?

Do you understand that ruling?

MR . KENDALL: Tt scunds like an impossibility the way
that you are posing it.

THE COURT: I don't think so.

ME . KENDALL: When discovery has been closed for two
FEATS . [ mean, [ can ask questions, "Did you do that
vesterday, or do you intend to do it in the future?" And
vou are saying I'm limited to that?

THE COURT: Couﬁse}, vou are the one that brought
this lawsuit. You are seeking injunctive relief. I
recognize there has been a habeas here, and we're going to
rrial. You are a lawyer, and you understand that I can
only enjoin what's going on now. 1 can't enjoin what tcok
placve in Lhe past.

TF the evidence in tlie past is directly relevant to
what's going on today then it may well be admiggible, but
if it's not -- if 1t's not it's not going to come in this
courtroom. I'm not going to hear that evidence. You've
got to deal with whalt's going on here néw. We're all stuclk

with that issue.

i
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MR . KBENDALL: T undersband, bub the point i, as T
mentioned earlier, our Case has never been a narrow
So for

curriculum attacl. [¢ hasn't been that narrow.

example, if -- one of the arguments that we made, and the

Court even noted it and discussed it in its ruling on the

summary Judgment molion, is the proposition that relying on

‘a system that 1is religious in nature could in itself be a

violation of the Fgtallishment Clause.

g for example, that kind of evidence isn't directly

related necessarily to specific conduct. 1t's related to

ihe curriculum in general or the reliance on the sgystem,

and that would be relevant. and it's particularly'relevamt

ro the gquestion of excessive entanglement.

5o 1 just want to make sure that I'm not being

limited from laying that foundation.

O

)

C achools are relying upon any

THE RT: Tf Lhe

system of belief that inferences upon the establishment

clause that's perfectly relevant. A1l T'm saying is that I

and will enjoin that conduct that is

want -- I can enjoin
going on in that school today, not two years ajgo.
All right?
MR . KENDALL: Yes, vour Honor.
THE COURT: ALl right. Now, you may, during the

j course of trial

and the point 1 want to make ig T think

need to make a ruling here that past conduct -- I don't
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want to reserve this yuling. Because I think I'm regquired
to make a ruling based upon my understanding of the law.
But T think it's important Lo understand that my ruling in

not allowing plaintiff to present past conduct does. not

67

preclude plaintifl from presenting conduct that is relevant

ro establish present conduct.
put the point is it has Lo be relevant to what's
going on in the school today, and that can be by

impeachment or by any otlhier method that you feel 1s

appropriate.  But I'm qoing to be focusging on what 's going

on today, not just in the past. 50 T'm going to exclude
Fhat evidence Loday. T'm golng to grant that moticn with
rhat understanding.

Does everyone understand my ruling?

MR KENDALL: Yegs, your HoONor.

MR, FTHE: Veg, your Honor.

PHE COURT: A1l right. Let's get on Lo number nine
lien.

MR. FINBE: TE's a =similar issue, your Honor. There

is a mindset that private and public and Waldorf, it's all

Fhe same Lhing, your tHonor. We are responsible for John
Morse School. We are responsible for vyuba River School.

Going back to 110, your Honor, even though it’'s not
ro prove, if you give us cime we will put on the

ouy case

programg at bhose schools. We will put on teachers from

L
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kindergarten. We have got teachers from the primary
grades. We have got teachers frow the middle gradesrall
the way up Lo the superintendent level.

You will get what's going on at those schools "in this
school year, but that's what we're responsible for. We're
not responsible for Sacramento Waldorf School or Community
Waldorf school. Tt's an entirely separate arena, and that
evidence should not come into this trial.

THE COURT: Well, as an example, here you are Lalking

aboutr exhilbit munnber 3. 1 don't know what these exhibits

are. Tt says, "Learning that grows with the learner, an
invroduct ion fo the Waldor? education.t  fow, you say
that

MR . FINE: Has no relevance. That's a private
Waldortf school.

THE COURT: You are saying that's a private school?

MR, FINE: T bhelieve so. We have a problem with
the - -

THE COURT: T mean, 1 don't have the benefit of these
éxhibitﬁ. Tet me just make this statement, and I‘m goling
o malke this ruling. Given the exhibits, that's different
here, but T'm going to wake this ruling that I'm nolt going
to allow any exhiblts or evidence ol activities that relate
Lo Waldorf private schools unless it is -- can be

established that those documents and that evidence,
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whatever it may be, 18 being utbilized 1n the public schools
ihat are subject to this lawsult.

Tt's a somewhat similar ruling, but I don't evén know
-~ you may have exhibits that T'm not encompassing within
my ruling here. Bulb it seems LO me if they are not being
ulilized in these schools even though they may be Waldort
materials they are not going to be relevant. 'They may be,
but you are going Lo have Lo make a showing thaltb they are.

So that's my ruling. So T'm going to grant that
motion subject ro the -- what I'11 do is T'11l grant that
mobion subject to the conditions I've just laid down. in
other words, ic will be on the plaintiff to establish an
sffer of proof that these exhiblts or any testimony aboul
Lhe private schools arve relevant Lo tlie present school in
guestion.

ME . KENDALL: TU could be relevant to some ol the
other cases as well.

THE COURT: Well, vou are going to have to make an
oftfer on that.

MR. KEMNDAILL: Sure.

THE COURT: But I'm going to make a ruling now that
{'m not going to allow the type of evidence that was
described by counsel that involves.private Waldorf schools
in this case unless yvou make an offer of proof Lhat in face

vou can demonstrate it as relevant Lo the activities being
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carried on at the two schools 1in guestlion.

MR KENDATL: Your Honor, it's possible that it could
Le relevant Lo some of the other disputed issues 1in this
case.

THE COURT: Such as?

MR . KENDALL: Whether anthroposophy 1s a religion,
For exanple, and to the question of excessive entanglement,
what they might call religious in the private Waldort
school . And they may do exactly the same thing in a public
school Lhat may aot be related.

THE COURT:  We have the issue reiating to the
religion, and then we have the issue of endorsement and
entanglensnt, those Lssues and the sub-issues within those
igsues. But my concern here 18 that all the parties
understand that while these documents may be relevant Lo
wherher or not Anthroposophy is a religion, I don't know
what we'rte talking aboul.

i Just have nunbers here and a very brief
descoription, but 1'm vreferring now to the motion in limine
l“ﬂt&rvﬂliClJ'L fhink - - the thrust of the way lL'm taking it
ia thab I'm not going to allow evidence of documents that
are utilized in private Waldorf educational programs to he
introduced in this case if they do not have any relevance
to the schools in this case.

Now, T'm referring to the endorsement and
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eritanglement issues specitically. You may have someChing
fliat may be helpful, Dbut rhat's not what this wmotion
addresses.

MR, PFTNE: That's correct, your Honor.

THE COURT:  T'm just dealing with this particular
issue as 1t relates to the public school.

Mt KENDALY.: Just éo T understand what are you
gaying is that I can'l use evidence of what happened in
private Waldorf schools to infer what happened in the
public Waldoof soliools, and I agree with that. Buﬁ all I'm
saying is given the muiltiple disputed 1ssues these exhibits
which the defendants didn't place in front ol you have
potential multiple relevance.

snd in pavticular T think it may be relevant LO the
issue of whether or not Anthroposophy is a religion, and
whether or not it involves excessive entanglement UO
separate the Lwo.

CHE COURT:  Well, you can make an of fer of proof.

M. KBENDATLL:  That's fine, your Honor .

THE COURT: Bub you heard my ruling.

A1l vight. ©On the issue of the teaching activities
in other Waldorf schools my ruling will be similar to those
previous rulings. T will exclude that evidence. However,
vou can make an of fer of proof £o show that there is some

connection between what's golng on in the private schools
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and the public schools.

MR . KENDALIL: Very well, your Honor.

THE COURT: A1l right. Anything else? Are tﬁere any
issues that we haven't covered?

With Uhe new pretrial order coming out you are going
o be busy.

MR. FINE: I think we covered everything. We
appreciate the Court schedul ing and rescheduling this
mot icn.

THE COURT: We are goling to have the status
conference -- thalt doesn't leave us much time before we get
Loy brial, bul | want to make sure these igssues are closely
defined before trial. 8o take a look at Lhe pretrial
crder, and if you have some Choughts on how we can refine

rhose issues betler --

(s, CANBRON: Your Honor, 1f I may just ask you one
gueslbion. How wany days are currently scheduled for the
trial in this case?

THE COURT: 1 believe eight days, eight court days.

R TR vour Honor, we might need Lo address that
in our pretrial. We suggested eight daysg for defendants.
T helieve from talking to counsel he neeas approximately
Lhe same.

THE COURT: So you are looking at four weeks?

ME . KENDALL: Given the Court's ruling on the use of
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expert witnesses 1 thionk that it is going to take me longer
o pul on my case, and we have always seltt -- I think it
ended up being a typo when the Court initially in its order
said eight days. And then we did the settlement
conference, and we Chought we were goigg to do a bifurcated
trial. So T don't think either party attempted to amend
that, and then that fell apart.

THE COURT: The Hinth Circuit conference g in Lhe

middle of thig trial.

ME. PINE: Your Honor, while vou are locoking at the
calendar, ®Ms. Cannon ig expecling her first child. She
would be golng on maternity leave on August 1st. We have
congulced with Mr. Kendall, and he doesn't have any tCime
constraints in terms of rushing this through.

THE COURT: IT've got a jury starting on the ninth of
July, and T have the Ninth Circuit conference starting on
the teth.

MR FTHNE: I believe we're both agreealile to pushing
Troanto the fall.

THE COUrRT: All right. Why don't you stay here with

the clerk and settle on the date. We can do this in three

MR . KENDALL: L think we originally said in our --
THE COURT: You wanted four weeks originaliy. I

mean, you were ltalking eight davs, and now vou are talking
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what -- a wonth for your case?

This is a Court trial. Bight days is two weeks.

MR, FINE: Bight court dave when we line the
witnesses up.

THE COURT: I uanderstand, but do you really think vou
are going to need eight daya?

Non'ec forgelb you are going to be éa]ljng some of the
defendants’ witnesses; aren'lt vyou?

MR. KENDALL: That is tzrue.

THE COURT: Maybe we can crogg-pollinalte a iittle
i, T would like it 1f we could do that, but if you are
ta}kjﬁg aboul & six-weck Lrial you are going to be way into
2u01 - 2002,

ME . PINE: I understand.

ME . KEWNDALL: T think we have been gsaying a Lobal of
Chree court weeks 1 what we have anticipated, and I think
Lhat s probably accurate.

Tie COURT: I would think we can get this thing out
of the way certainly in 16 days, but it's not my case. Why
dgon't you meen with the clerk now and get a firm trial
date, and we*'ll include that in the order. And in the
meantime wso'll stay with the current schedule and get this
thing resolved oun the amended pretrial order, and wet'll
hhave a hearing and a status confersnce on the last.

Anything further?
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M. CARNMON: Mo, your llonor.
MR, KENDALL:  Hoe, yvour Honor.
THE COURT: Thank you.

(Whereupon the proceedings were adjourned.)

- -000- -~
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